BEFORE THE WASHINGTON UTILIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

	In the Matter of Penalty Assessment Against GENIE SERVICE COMPANY, INC. in the Amount of $1,400

	DOCKET NO. TE-061753
DECLARATION OF

JOHN FOSTER


	
	


JOHN FOSTER, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the state of Washington, declares as follows:

1. I am over 18 years of age, a citizen of the United States, a resident of the state of Washington, and competent to be a witness.

2. I am employed by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (Commission) as Motor Carrier Law Enforcement (MCLE) Special Investigator in the Motor Carrier Safety Section. I have been employed at the Commission for over 20 years, holding various positions. As an MCLE Special Investigator, my responsibilities include performing safety inspections, economic investigations, and other related motor carrier activities in a Commission program which regulates transportation activities.
3. On June 25, 2007, I contacted Daniel Carter, Chief Financial Officer of Genie Service Company, Inc., at 1846 Terminal, Suite 101, Richland, WA 99352. The purpose of the contact was a recheck of a compliance review conducted in November 2006 that resulted in the penalty assessment in this docket. I inspected the carrier’s records for the period of November 15, 2006, through June 24, 2007, and found no violations. Tom McVaugh, Commission Motor Carrier Law Enforcement (MCLE) Special Investigator, was also present for this compliance review.

4. On November 26, 2007, I conducted another recheck of the compliance review conducted in November 2006 that resulted in the penalty assessment in this docket.  For that purpose, I contacted Daniel Carter, Chief Financial Officer of Genie Service Company, Inc., at 1846 Terminal, Suite 101, Richland, WA 99352. Tom McVaugh, Commission Motor Carrier Law Enforcement (MCLE) Special Investigator, was also present for this compliance review.

5. I inspected the carrier’s records for the period of June 25, 2007, through November 25, 2007. Upon completion of my investigation, I determined that Genie was in violation of Commission safety rules regarding driver qualification and drivers’ hours of service. These violations included the following:
· One violation of 49 C.F.R. 391.51(b)(2), failing to maintain inquiries into driver's driving record in driver's qualification file.
· One violation of 49 C.F.R. 391.51(b)(2), failing to maintain inquiries into driver’s employment record in driver’s qualification file.

· Three violations of 49 C.F.R. 391.51(b)(4), failing to maintain the responses of each state agency to the annual driver record inquiry.

· Three violations of 49 C.F.R. 395.5(a)(1), requiring or permitting a passenger-carrying commercial motor vehicle driver to drive more than 10 hours following eight consecutive hours off duty.
· Four violations of 49 C.F.R. 395.5(a)(2), requiring or permitting a passenger-carrying commercial motor vehicle driver to drive after having been on duty 15 hours.
See Appendix A, compliance review report for the November 26, 2007, recheck.
6. As part of the November 2007 compliance review, I directed Genie to submit a letter to the Commission outlining the company’s response to correcting the violations. See Appendix A.
7. The violations are all repeat violations.
49 C.F.R. 391.51(b)(2)
Genie was issued violations in 2001 (driving record and employment record), 2004 (driving record and employment record), and in this docket in 2006 (driving record). These violations are considered critical violations by the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration.
49 C.F.R. 391.51(b)(4

Genie received violations in 2004.
49 C.F.R. 395.5(a)(1

Genie was issued violations in 2006 (this docket) and in March 2007.

49 C.F.R. 395.5(a)(2)

Genie received violations in March 2007.

See Appendix B, excerpts from prior compliance reviews, and Appendix C, letter from the Commission to Genie dated March 15, 2007.
8. Although the compliance review of November 26, 2007, resulted in a satisfactory safety rating, in my opinion the repeated violations in the same areas justify further enforcement.
9. I understand that Staff will be requesting the Commission assess a penalty against Genie based on the November 26, 2007, compliance review.
10. I received a letter from Genie on December 17, 2007, signed by Dan Carter, addressing the violations I noted in the November 26, 2007, recheck and providing information on how the company has corrected them. This letter is attached at Appendix D.
11. In his letter, Mr. Carter asserts that the violations of 49 C.F.R. 395.5 (a)(1) and 395.5(a)(2), exceeding 10 hours driving time and driving after 15 hours on duty (Part B items 4 & 5) did not take place as driver Ron Bloom completed his log sheet incorrectly and it does not take more than 10 hours to drive between the Tri-Cities and Grand Coulee. The question is not how long it would normally take to drive from the Tri-Cities to Grand Coulee and return, but rather how long did the driver actually drive. Driver Ron Bloom’s log sheet for the day in question indicates 12 hours of driving time, two hours beyond the 10 hour maximum allowed. Part 395 requires that drivers submit to the motor carrier true and accurate time records. The motor carrier is required to insure the accuracy of these records. Genie accepted and filed this record without corrections 42 days prior to this inspection.

12. Mr. Carter attempts in the letter to use this explanation for the unrelated violations in Part B items 1 & 2, as well, pertaining to driver qualifications. Genie’s letter does not address the 10 and 15 hour rule violations by three other drivers.
13. In the letter, Mr. Carter also states that the reason he did not make inquiries into the driving records of each driver was because Department of Licensing returned his request due to a fee change. I understood at the time of the inspection that the request had been returned in July 2007, four months prior to the inspection. Consequently, there was adequate time for a second request to be sent. Driver abstracts for two of the three drivers in question were faxed to me from Genie eight days after the inspection. I never received the abstract for the third driver. The letter does not address what corrective actions the carrier will take to insure these violations will not recur.
Dated this 15th day of February, 2008, at Olympia, Washington.
John Foster
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